
 

Corporate & Democratic Services 

www.hastings.gov.uk/meetings 

Charity Committee Agenda 
 

Monday, 29 September 2014 at 6.00 pm 

Town Hall, Queen's Square, Priory Meadow, Hastings TN34 1QR 

 
If you are attending the Town Hall for this meeting, please enter the building via the Community 
Contact Centre entrance. 
 
For further information, please contact Michael Courts on 01424 451764 or email 
mcourts@hastings.gov.uk 
 

  Page No. 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

2.   Declarations of Interest  

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2014 1 - 4 

4.   Notification of any additional urgent items  

5.   Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme 5 - 14 

 (Monica Adams-Acton, Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy)  

6.   Foreshore Trust - Financial Report 15 - 24 

 (Peter Grace, Head of Finance)  

7.   Annual Report and Final Accounts 2013/14 25 - 54 

 (Peter Grace, Head of Finance)  

8.   Former Ladies Toilets under Promenade at Verulam Place 55 - 60 

 (Peter Grace, Head of Finance)  

9.   Minutes of the meeting of Coastal Users Group held on 9 
September 2014 

61 - 64 

10.   Additional urgent items (if any)  
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



CHARITY COMMITTEE 
 

30 JUNE 2014 
 

CH. 1 

 
 

Present: Councillors Hodges (Chair), Forward and Cartwright 
 
Apologies for absence were noted for Councillor Westley and Mr Chris May, 
The Protector 
 

 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made at this meeting. 
 
5. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 JUNE 2014  
 

RSEOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2014 be 
approved and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 

 
6. FORESHORE TRUST FINANCIAL REPORT  
 
The Head of Finance presented a report to advise the committee on the current year’s 
financial position and to agree revisions to the Trust’s business plan and review the 
reserves policy. 
 
The budget had been agreed in March 2014, and a surplus of £250,000 had been 
projected for 2014/15 financial year.  The Head of Finance advised that income and 
expenditure projections were currently in line with the budget.  The business plan had 
been revised to reflect that the Charity Committee had approved a scheme for the 
redevelopment of White Rock Baths as an indoor arena for BMX and skateboard 
competitions.  It was likely that further revisions would be required to the business 
plan, depending on the extent of external funding for the scheme. 
 
The Charity Committee was required to approve a reserves policy and risk register 
each year.  Members noted that the reserves policy was based on guidance from the 
Charity Commission.  The report stated that reserves of £1,067,000 would be retained 
as at 31 March 2015, which was above the suitable level identified in the reserves 
policy.  
 
A copy of the risk register had been appended to the report.  Discussion took place 
regarding the potential risks, and efforts to mitigate their impact on the Foreshore 
Trust.  The White Rock Baths scheme would also be added to the risk register, once 
the external funding package had been confirmed. 
 
Councillor Forward moved approval of the recommendations, as set out in the Head of 
Finance’s report, which was seconded by Councillor Cartwright. 
 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that –  
 
1) the current financial position for 2014/15 be agreed; 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



CHARITY COMMITTEE 
 

30 JUNE 2014 
 

CH. 2 

 

2) the business plan be revised to accommodate additional works and 
contributions being made in respect of the White Rock Baths (subject to 
external funding being confirmed); 

3) the risk register be agreed, and; 
4) the reserves policy be agreed 
 

Reason for the decision: -  
The Council has the responsibility for the proper management of the financial affairs of 
the Trust. In doing so it complies with Accounting Codes of Practice and the high 
standards required for the accounting of public money. 
 
A surplus was generated in 2013/14 in line with expectations and a surplus in line with 
budget expectations is anticipated for 2014/15 in respect of ongoing operations.   
 
The reserves policy is reviewed on an annual basis and is undertaken against the 
uncertainties that continue in the economy.     
 
 
 
7. SEAFRONT BYELAW REVIEW  
 
The Head of Amenities, Resorts and Leisure presented a report to seek the Charity 
Committees support for a review and replacement of existing byelaws for the seafront 
and promenade. 
 
A working group of the Coastal Users Group, which included representatives of key 
stakeholders, had been looking at the management of coastal leisure actives.  It was 
necessary to review the current byelaws, which had been in place for a number of 
years, as many had become outdated and inappropriate. 
 
The report recommended initiating a review, which would replace the existing byelaws 
with two model byelaws to cover a range of activities on the promenade and seashore.  
A copy of the draft model byelaws was circulated at the meeting.  The report set out a 
timetable for the review process and adoption of the new byelaws.  The review would 
include extensive consultation with the Foreshore Trust, Costal Users Group as well 
as with sports, leisure and other user groups.  Following adoption by Full Council, the 
draft byelaws would then be subject to formal advertising before taking effect in April 
2015. 
 
Councillor Cartwright moved approval of the recommendations, as set out in the Head 
of Amenities, Resorts and Leisure’s report, which was seconded by Councillor 
Forward. 
 

RESOLVED (unanimously) that –  
 
1) the Charity Committee support a review and replacement of our many, 

old existing byelaws with the model byelaws, tailored for Hastings’ 
requirements, and; 

Page 2



CHARITY COMMITTEE 
 

30 JUNE 2014 
 

CH. 3 

 

2) the Charity Committee support the recommendations of the Zoning 
Working Group to include general activities listed in the proposed 
model byelaws within the report.  

 
Reason for the decision: -  
The current range of existing byelaws for the seafront and foreshore are outdated and 
in some cases irrelevant.   A preliminary review has been undertaken and we are 
proposing to adopt modern model byelaws with modifications for additional activities 
we wish to include.  
The report sets out the detail of the activities to be included in the model byelaws for 
onward informal and formal consultation. Although the Foreshore Trust does not have 
the power to make byelaws the Council is consulting with the Charity Committee to 
seek its support as landowner and major stakeholder. 
 
 
8. MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF COASTAL USERS GROUP HELD ON 10 

JUNE 2014  
 
The minutes of the Coastal Users Group meeting held on 10 June 2014 were 
submitted. 

RESOLVED – that the minutes of the meeting of the Coastal Users 
Group meeting held on 10 June 2014 be received and noted. 

 
 
 
 

(The Chair declared the meeting closed at. 6.34 pm) 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

$ftivpxje 
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No: 5 

 

Report to: Charity Committee 

 

Date of Meeting: 29 September 2014 

 

Report Title: Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme  

 

Report By: Monica Adams-Acton 

 Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy 

 

Purpose of Report 

To present the recommendations of the Grants Advisory Panel (GAP) in respect of 
projects to be funded by the Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme 2014/15 - 
Round 4 
 

Recommendation(s) 

That the Charity Committee determines grant awards in respect of the applications 
received and evaluated by the Grants Advisory Panel, and having regard for the 
available budget.  

  

Reasons for Recommendations 

The Grants Advisory Panel (GAP) carefully reviewed all 41 applications received for 
grant support and has made its recommendations following a thorough assessment 
involving all members of the panel. The decision on grant funding rests with the Charity 
Committee. The Panel’s recommendations can be funded from the allocated budget.  
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



$ftivpxje  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Wards Affected 

Castle, Central St. Leonards, Old Hastings, West St. Leonards 
 

Area(s) Affected 

All 
 

Policy Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness Yes 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     No 
Environmental Issues    No 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    No 
 

Background Information 

Appendix A – Foreshore Trust Small Grants 2014-15 Round Four 

 

Officer to Contact 

Monica Adams-Acton 
adams-acton@hastings.gov.uk 
01424 451781

Page 6



$ftivpxje  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

$su03m3jz 
Report Template v23.0 

 
Page 1 of 6 

Agenda Item No: 5 

 

Report to: Charity Committee 

 

Date of Meeting: 29 September 2014 

 

Report Title: Foreshore Trust Small Grants 2014/15 (Round 4) 

 

Report By: Sandra Garner 

 Chair, Foreshore Trust Grants Advisory Panel 

 

Purpose of Report 

To make recommendations as to which organisations should be funded under the 
Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme 2014/15 (Round 4) and the allocations that 
should be made to each.   
 

Recommendation(s) 

To approve the Grant Advisory Panel’s (GAP) recommendation to award small grants 
to the organisations shown in Appendix A 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

The successful organisations for grant funding have been selected following an open 
application process, and awarded to those considered by the GAP to best meet the 
Foreshore Trust's aims and objectives.   
 
 
 

Page 9



$su03m3jz 

Page 2 of 6 

Background 

1. The Foreshore Trust Small Grants Fund is a small grants scheme for voluntary 
and community groups offering a service within Hastings & St Leonards. Around 
£50,000 was available for 2014/15 for small grants of up to £5,000 each.  

2. The main aim of the Small Grants Fund is to support smaller voluntary and 
community groups in carrying out activities that enhance the quality of local 
residents' lives and increase their involvement in the community. The fund can 
also help with capacity building of smaller voluntary and community groups so as 
to strengthen their ability to carry out their work.  

3. Hastings Borough Council is the administrator for the Small Grants Programme, 
and advertised the fourth round programme from April 2014 in various web 
pages and printed publications including HBC, ESCC, HVA, Hastings Online 
Times, and Hastings Observer. Notifications were also sent via e-mail to all 
previous applicants. The deadline for receipt of applications was set for 11th 
June 2014. 

Assessment of applications  

4. The programme team received a total of 41 applications for consideration and 
the total amount requested was £147,142 in grant funding.  This presented a 
considerable challenge to all GAP members to make its recommendation. 

5. Eight members of GAP, including those recently recruited by the Charity 
Committee, assessed the applications. Each of the eight members appraised 
and scored approximately 10 applications each, having previously declared 
conflicts of interest. This precluded members from appraising applications from 
particular organisations.   

6. For this round, panel members were paired, so that as a minimum, at least two 
people would assess each application. Panel members were also encouraged to 
read through all of the remaining applications prior to the panel meetings if time 
permitted.   

7. The Grants Advisory Panel met on 15th and 22nd July to jointly review all the 
applications. The scoring system in the application form was used as a starting 
point for a lengthy group discussion on each submission. They were then 
categorised either for approval (in whole or part) or for rejection with a clear 
explanation as to the reasoning.  The final agreed joint recommendations are 
shown in Appendix A (Applications recommended for funding) and B 
(Applications not recommended for funding). 

8. The panel approved 18 applications totalling £50,000 for 2014/15 programme. 

Policy Implications 

9. The requirements to monitor the take up and potential impact of services in 
terms of equality of opportunity is fully in line with the Foreshore Trust's 
equalities policy. 

Page 10



$su03m3jz 

Page 3 of 6 

10. The Foreshore Trust's Grants Programme is a funding regime that will impact 
positively on the economic and financial environment in the Borough, and will 
assist organisations in delivering a range of activities for local people. 

Wards Affected 

Ashdown, Baird, Braybrooke, Castle, Central St. Leonards, Conquest, Gensing, 
Hollington, Maze Hill, Old Hastings, Ore, Silverhill, St. Helens, Tressell, West St. 
Leonards, Wishing Tree 
 

Area(s) Affected 

Central Hastings, East Hastings, North St. Leonards, South St. Leonards 
 

Policy Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness Yes 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     No 
Environmental Issues    Yes 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    Yes 
 

Background Information 

Appendix A – Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme (Round 4) Applications 
recommended for funding 

 
Appendix B – Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme (Round 4) Applications not 
recommended for funding  
 

Officer to Contact 

Pranesh Datta 
pdatta@hastings.gov.uk 
01424 451784 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



$su03m3jz 

Page 4 of 6 

Appendix 1  

Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme (Round 4) Applications 
recommended for funding 

 

Applicant Project Name Funding 
recommended 

Age UK Hollington Healthy Living Club 
HLC supports older residents to improve health and wellbeing 
through delivering fun activity sessions and health education. 
The aim is for the project to carry on for a minimum of one year.  

£967.00 

Better Braybrooke The Pocket Park, Wildlife and Community Growing Project 
The aim is to develop this formerly neglected and misused 
space into a place for all: to play, learn, be creative and flex 
green fingers. Over the next year the organisation intends to 
fully plant the raised beds, embark on 2 Art Projects, create a 
covered seating and water collection system and run community 
events and open days to raise awareness of the space. 

£3,284.00 

CA1066 Volunteering Works 
Nearly 90% of the workers at CA1066 are volunteers who 
willingly give their free time to assist the local community with 
problems of a general nature which adversely affect their well-
being and quality of life. This is an on-going project with a large 
turnover of volunteers. The grant is needed to cover the costs of 
volunteers’ travel, training, and refreshments.  

£5,000.00 

Counselling Plus Access for All 
To make the counselling service that the organisation offers 
available to people who would normally be unable to access 
professional counselling. The grant would act as a ‘hardship 
fund’ which would be accessed on behalf of clients who are 
unable to pay the £10 minimum. 

£5,000.00 

FAT Tuesdays Hastings Fat Tuesday Mentoring Program (HFTMP) 
The aim of this project is to develop the Hastings Fat Tuesday 
Mentoring Program and to enable them to mentor and nurture 
two young, local un-signed acts for 6 to 12 months.  

£5,000.00 

Friends of 
Alexandra Park 

Friends of Alexandra Park (Hastings) Website 
The grant is to pay for the development of a website for FOAP, 
with a view to attract a wider (and possibly younger) target 
audience 

£760.00 

HARC Improved client service through new technology 
Purchase of new computer equipment for the organisation.  The 
purpose is to improve efficiency and quality of advice to people, 
through better technology. Up to date equipment will enable 
faster working and better access.  

£4,555.00 

Hastings and 
District Interfaith 
Forum 

Hastings Festival of Cultures and Faiths 
To bring together different faith and community groups to plan 
and deliver a celebration of the diversity of faith and culture in 
our community.  

£1,000.00 

Hastings and 
District Woodcraft 

Phoenix  
The projects aim is to deliver a series of 6, 2 hour outdoor 
workshops over the winter 2014 at Ore Valley Adventure 
Playground aimed at reconnecting young people with their local 
environment and each other on a practical and emotional level. 
Every session will start with the building of a fire, and end with 
its safe extinction 

£1,903.00 

Hastings and 
Rother Mediation 

Volunteer Training in community mediation skills 
The project aim is to train and prepare volunteers from the local 
community to assist neighbours resolve conflict following 
referrals from police, housing associations, agencies etc.   

£1,212.00 

Hastings and 
Central 

Out and About – Let's do More. 
The project aim is to continue getting less mobile members of 

£692.00 

Page 12



$su03m3jz 

Page 5 of 6 

Townswomen's 
Guild 

the Guild out for a few hours. The Guild has a 5 or 6 members 
over 90 who, this year, have really enjoyed the company of 
other women, knowing that if they have difficulties they will be 
helped.  This friendship encourages independence, 
social/cultural inclusion and improvements to health.  

Hastings 
Philharmonic Choir 

Carmina Burana 
The Choir aims to reach out to the community and significantly 
increase its size in order to perform Carl Orff’s Carmina Burana 
at St Mary in the Castle in April 2015. In the run up to the 
concert, a number of special workshops will be organised to 
attract new members and broaden the diversity of people in the 
Choir.  

£2,000.00 

Hastings Predators 
Floorball 

Hastings Predators Community Group 
The grant is to support the groups evening community group 
and under-16’s training sessions and publicising them from 
October 2014 when our current funding ends. This would fully 
support both sessions until 31st March 2015.   

£3,342.00 

HOPEG Winter Celebration / Easter Celebration 
To provide activities during the winter months to residents from 
the BME community which will give them something to look 
forwards to and help with social isolation. 

£840.00 

Radiator Arts Snowline  
To create a winter-themed interactive installation, showcasing 
work created specifically for this project by local children 
alongside that of professional artists. Work for the project will 
begin towards the end of October, with the intention to hold the 
event in mid December.  

£4,995.00 

RAF Cadets The 304 Flight Sim Project 
The aim of this project is to develop a bespoke flight simulator; 
built, used and maintained by the cadets of Hastings 304 
squadron.   When complete, the flight simulator will be housed 
in the Squadron HQ, and will be used to develop the education 
and experience of flight skills for a range of (simulated) aircraft.  

£2,137.00 

Rhythmix Rhythmix Music (this is a working title).  
The aim is to increase the number of participatory music 
activities for young people with moderate learning disabilities in 
the Hastings/St Leonards area to help them improve their 
musical, social and personal skills through group music making 
activities. The group would like the young people to come up 
with a project name. 

£3,188.00 

Seaview Seaview Catering Improvement Project 
To improve catering facilities by installing Commercial Catering 
Equipment in order to provide daily hot, nutritious and affordable 
meals to the Service users. 

£4,125.00 

Total  £50,000 

 
 

Page 13



$su03m3jz 

Page 6 of 6 

Appendix 2 - Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme (Round 4) 
Applications not recommended for funding 

 
Applicant Project Name Option A Funding 

requested 
Chichester Diocesan Association  Hastings Deanery Worker Support £5,000 

Collaborate 2 Collaborate 2 £5,000 

Craftimation Factory Float Your Boat   £4,690 

Diversity Resource International  Acquiring Skills for the Workplace £3,422 

Energise Sussex Coast St Leonards Energy Shop 
 

£5,000 

Epilepsy Lifestyle Night-time Epilepsy Monitoring Project £5,000 

Fishermen’s Protection Society Stade Spirit  £3,010 

Friends Through Cancer Friends thru Cancer ~ Living with 
Cancer 

£1,956 

Fellowship of St Nicholas ACE [Apprentices Completely 
Achieving]  

£4,426 
 

Hastings Arts Forum GALLERY HEATING £4,560 

Hastings Chinese Association 1 UK history adventure;   2 Chinese 
dance workshop 

£5,000 
 

Hastings Conquerors AFC Goal post £5,000 

HOTRA Hastings Illustration Festival £1,900 

In2play ACTIVE SOLES £3,625 

Oasis Oasis Activity and advertising Project  £3,449 

Sedlescombe CE Primary 
School 

Computing Champions! £5,000 
 

St Michaels Hospice St Michael’s Hospice Sluice Room £5,000 

Tempo Arts Tempo Arts (TA) at The SPACE & 
Electro Studios Project Space (ESPS) 

£4,765 
 

The Bridge Make & Take £4,800 

Ukulele Night at the Stag Ukulele Night at the Stag £4,973 

Uncontrollable Imagination Kids & ad’s Inspiring Entertainment  £4,979 

Women’s Voice Children's Day 2014 Festival  £2,650 

Respond Academy What A Day £2,000 

Total  £95,205 

 

Page 14



 
 
 
 

$glmwkgho 
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No: 6 

 

Report to: Charity Committee 

 

Date of Meeting: 29 September 2014 

 

Report Title: Foreshore Trust - Financial Report  

 

Report By: Peter Grace 

 Head of Finance 

 

Purpose of Report 

To advise members of the Committee on the current year’s financial position 
 

Recommendation(s)  

1. To agree the current financial position for 2014/15 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

The Council has the responsibility for the proper management of the financial affairs of 
the Trust. In doing so it complies with Accounting Codes of Practice and the high 
standards required for the accounting of Public money. 
 
A surplus was generated in 2013/14 in line with expectations and a surplus in line with 
budget expectations is anticipated for 2014/15 in respect of ongoing operations.   
 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



$glmwkgho  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Introduction 

1. The Foreshore Trust derives its income mainly from Car Parking and property 
leases/licences.  

2. Appendix 1 attached provides a summarised financial position for 2014/15. 

Financial Position 2014/15 

3. The budget agreed in March 2014 identified budgeted income at £1,088K and 
expenditure at £838K. The estimated surplus for the year being £250K, after direct 
governance costs, but before distribution of grants, capital charges and before use 
of Reserves. 

4. Income and expenditure projections are currently slightly in advance of budget with 
an estimated surplus to £258K mainly due to increased rental income 

Business Plan 2014/15 

5. The Charity Committee of the 5th and 30th June 2014, approved the White Rock 
Baths scheme. 

6. The business plan has been revised to take account of the decisions made at the 
meetings, although it will need to be revised further in time depending upon the 
final extent of external funding received in respect of the White Rock baths 

7. This level of programmed spend will continue to reduce the cash balances held by 
the Trust. The implications for the Trust are that the level of reserves will decrease, 
but the Trust will still retain reserves above the minimum level identified within the 
Reserves Policy – subject to no unexpected calls on the reserves and no reduction 
in the expected levels of car parking and fee income. 

8. The current programme of works is identified in Appendix 2. The Committee has 
approved expenditure on all these schemes.  

Reserves 

9. The total effective cash balances on the Trust accounts at the 31 March 2014 
amounted to £1.32m  With the revisions to the business plan, the revised cash 
balances for future years are estimated as follows :- 

£1,067K as at 31st March 2015,  

£844K as at 31st March 2016  

      £1,069K as at 31st March 2017. 
 
The reserves policy identifies £690,000 as the suitable level to maintain – given the 
level of uncertainty in the economy and the potential risks faced by the Trust. 

Page 16



$glmwkgho  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Use of Surpluses 

10. The Trust has a duty to maintain its assets and only thereafter to consider the use 
of any surplus to the benefit of the community. 

 
 

Wards Affected 

Ashdown, Baird, Braybrooke, Castle, Central St. Leonards, Conquest, Gensing, 
Hollington, Maze Hill, Old Hastings, Ore, Silverhill, St. Helens, Tressell, West St. 
Leonards, Wishing Tree 
 

Area(s) Affected 

Central Hastings, East Hastings, North St. Leonards, South St. Leonards 
 

Policy Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     No 
Environmental Issues    No 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    No 
 

Background Information 

Appendix 1 –  Financial Monitoring Report 
Appendix 2 –  Business Plan   
 

Officer to Contact 

Peter Grace 
pgrace@hastings.gov.uk 
01424 451503 

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust Appendix 1

SUMMARY - MONITORING REPORT
Revised Budget 

2014-15 
YTD Actual 2014-

15 
Estimate to end of 

year

Revised 
Estimated 

Outturn 2014-15

Variance to 
Budget

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Incoming Resources
Investment Income (7) (3) (4) (7) 0

Incoming resources from Charitable activities * (921) (545) (376) (921) 0

Rental income (160) (89) (78) (167) (7)
Total incoming resources (1,088) (637) (458) (1,095) (7)

Resources Expended
Charitable Activities* (excluding Capital charges) 704 187 517 704 0
Maintenance projects and cyclical repairs 35 17 18 35 0
Governance costs 98 3 95 98 (0)

Total resources expended 837 207 630 837 (0)

Total Operating (Surplus)/Deficit (251) (429) 171 (258) (7)

Grants 50 -1 51 50 0
Events 26 17 9 26 0
Projects 423 130 293 423 0

(Surplus)/Deficit 248 (283) 524 241 (7)

Interest Income & Depreciation non HBC 19 (3) 19

Transfer to/(from) HBC account 268 (280) 221

Total Funds brought forward 1,317 1,317

Total funds carried forward 1,069 1,076

Actual  expenditure  to 31st  August 2014 

P
age 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1A

DETAILED - MONITORING REPORT
Revised Budget 

2014-15 
YTD Actual 2014-

15 
Estimate to end of 

year
Revised Estimated 
Outturn 2014-15

Variance to 
Budget

£ £ £ £ £
Cost of Charitable activities - by activity
Car parking - operating costs 210,210 9,310 200,900 210,210 0
Stade & Foreshore - operating costs 202,090 83,140 118,950 202,090 0
Stade hall & Stade Open Space MUGA 16,550 4,560 11,990 16,550 0
Depreciation** 26,480 0 26,480 26,480 0
Other direct premises costs - cleaning 101,510 29,850 71,660 101,510 0
Other direct costs 63,630 19,220 44,410 63,630 0
Street Cleansing 87,990 30,310 57,680 87,990 0
Other Recharges 22,040 10,640 11,400 22,040 0
Total 730,500 187,030 543,470 730,500 0

Maintenance projects and cyclical repairs
Maintenance projects (Direct B020) 35,000 17,240 17,760 35,000 0

Governance costs
Direct HBC costs- estimated 56,780 0 56,780 56,780 0
Auditors remuneration 13/14 estimated 3,500 (3,500) 7,000 3,500 0
Protectors fees 10,000 60 9,940 10,000 0
Legal and Professional fees 8,470 4,340 4,130 8,470 0
Responsibility allowance - Chair 6,000 2,020 3,980 6,000 0
Insurance 13,000 0 13,000 13,000 0
Trustees reimbursement & meeting costs 0 0 0 0 0
Total 97,750 2,920 94,830 97,750 0

Grants
Grants - 50,000 (969) 50,969 50,000 0

Total 50,000 (969) 50,969 50,000 0

Events 0 0
Hastings Annual Free Beach Concert 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0
Hastings & District Canoe Club 1,400 1,260 140 1,400 0
Idolrich Theatre Rotto Productions 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0
Labyrinth Arts / Community Bicycle Workshop 1,960 1,764 196 1,960 0
Hastings Predators Floorball Club 1,817 1,635 182 1,817 0
St Michaels Hospice 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0
Hastings Borough Bonfire Society 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
18 Hours Ltd 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0
The Hastings Storytelling Festival 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
Central St Leonards Town Team 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0
Hastings Fat Tuesday 2,000 2,000 2,000 0
Respond Academy 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0
Albion in the Community 1,065 1,065 1,065 0
Mermaids on the Beach 2,000 1,800 200 2,000 0

26,242 17,259 8,983 26,242 0
** Capital charges of £26,840 are budgeted for but not included as they do not effect the cash position

P
age 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Business Plan Appendix 2

Foreshore Trust Spending Plan 2013-14 2014 -2015 2014-15 2015-2016 Total

Cost centre PROPERTY DESCRIPTION OF WORK ACTUAL
REVISED 
BUDGET 

ESTIMATE
ACTUAL ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE 
2014- 2016

£ £ £ £ £
Maintenance projects within HBC budget

5290B020 Pier Area Area inspections and repairs 3,000 3,000 6,000
5290B020 White Rock Baths External redecoration 101 745 15,000 15,000
5290B020 Stade Barriers Annual maintenance 1,490 2,000 1,515 2,000 4,000
5290B020 Public Conveniences Maintenance 247 6,000 6,000 12,000

5290B020 Public Conveniences - Pelham Refurbishment 58,007 0
5290B020 Car Parks Rock a Nore Maintenance 6,839 6,000 320 6,000 12,000
5290B020 Car Parks - Pelham Maintenance 166 6,000 6,000 12,000
5290B020 Other Premises Maintenance 2,972 0

Total of Cyclical Repairs and Redecorations 66,850 23,000 5,552 38,000 61,000

0

5290B020 Beach - Other Replacement 11,060 12,000 11,693 12,000 24,000

5290B020 Beachfront Railings Marina area 15,000 15,000

Total Maintenance Projects 11,060 12,000 11,693 27,000 39,000

Projects (main programme) 2013-14 2014-2015 2014-15 2015-2016 Total

ACTUAL
REVISED 
BUDGET 

ESTIMATE
ACTUAL ESTIMATE

ESTIMATE 
2014 - 2016

£ £ £ £ £

5291B022 White Rock Baths Reinstatement of sewerage 29,794 0

5291B022 White Rock Baths Concrete repairs - general* 50,000 50,000

5291B022 White Rock Baths
Contribution to allow rental on Baths total project 
costs £822k being: FST £150K HBC loan £300k 
HBC contrib. £172 ESCC  £200k 

178,076 150,000 2,000 300,000 450,000

5292B022 Marina Chalets Purchase 10 new chalets 11,770 (11,660) 0

5289B020 Beachfront Stade Kitchen** Classroom 35,050 34,380 0

5293B022 Beachfront Big Beach Project** 0 153,000 153,000

5285B022 Eco Stade Environmentally Sustainable Tourism** 210 35,000 98,760 35,000

5293B022 Beachfront Children's play area 0
5293B022 Beachfront Pelham play ground resurfacing 59,710 3,490 0
5294B022 Rock a Nore Car Park Railings at Rock a Nore 40,000 40,000
5294B022 Car parks Improved signage 20,000 2,970 20,000
5295B022 Pelham Place Car Park Credit card machines 15,667 0
5295B022 Pelham Place Car Park Repaving + 25 spaces 18,243 0
5296B022 Contingency 25,000 25,000 50,000

Total Programme 348,520 423,000 129,940 375,000 798,000

* Further Charity Committee Approval before additional spend
** Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG) projects

P
age 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

$ct4o1udc 
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No: 7 

 

Report to: Charity Committee 

 

Date of Meeting: 29 September 2014 

 

Report Title: Annual Report and Financial Accounts 2013-14 

 

Report By: Peter Grace 

 Head of Finance 

 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose is for members of the Committee to consider the 2013/14 Annual Report 
and Financial Accounts. 
 

Recommendation(s)  

1. The Annual Report and Financial Accounts for 2013/14 to be approved 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

The Council has the responsibility for the proper management of the financial affairs of 
the Trust.  
 
The Council as Trustee, through the Charity Committee, is required to approve the 
annual report and accounts by the 30 September each year. 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



$ct4o1udc  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Introduction 

1. The Annual Report and Accounts are attached to this report. The Council has 
received an unqualified opinion on the accounts from the external auditor, 
Manningtons.  

2. The Committee is recommended to approve the Annual Report and Accounts 

Financial Position 2013/14 

3. A surplus of £174,000 was achieved as detailed in section 12 of the Trustee's 
report, which was in line with expectations. 

4. In terms of net current assets (effectively the cash positon), the balance is 
£1,317,015 at 31 March 2014, whilst total funds (which includes all assets) amount 
to £1,846,101. 

5. The balance sheet note 10 identifies the Cash Reserve as the Contingency 
Reserve £690,000 and the Main Programme Reserve as £627,015.   

Reserves 

6.   A reserve policy was reviewed at the Committee's 30 June 2014 meeting. It will   
remain appropriate to consider the reserves policy on a regular basis.  
 

Wards Affected 

Ashdown, Baird, Braybrooke, Castle, Central St. Leonards, Conquest, Gensing, 
Hollington, Maze Hill, Old Hastings, Ore, Silverhill, St. Helens, Tressell, West St. 
Leonards, Wishing Tree 
 

Area(s) Affected 

Central Hastings, East Hastings, North St. Leonards, South St. Leonards 
 

Policy Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     No 
Environmental Issues    No 
Economic/Financial Implications   Yes 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    No 
 

Page 26



$ct4o1udc  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 3 of 3 

Background Information 

Appendix 1 –  Report and Accounts 
 
 

Officer to Contact 

Peter Grace 
pgrace@hastings.gov.uk 
01424 451503 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Charity registration number: 1105649

Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Annual Report and Financial Statements

for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

Page 29



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Contents

Reference and Administrative Details 1

Trustee's Report 2 to 11

Protector's Report 12

Trustees' responsibilities 13

Independent auditors' report 14 to 15

Statement of financial activities 16

Balance Sheet 17

Notes to the financial statements 18 to 23

Page 30



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Reference and Administrative Details

Charity name Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Charity registration number 1105649

Trustee Hastings Borough Council

The Trustee acts through its Charity Committee, whose members are:

Committee Chair Councillor John Hodges

Committee Members Councillor Kim Forward (appointed 10 June 2013)

Councillor Emily Westley (appointed 26 May 2014)

Councillor Jay Kramer (retired 26 May 2014)

Auditor Manningtons
7 Wellington Square
Hastings
East Sussex
TN34 1PD

Protector Chritopher May MA, FCA
Froghole Oast House
Crockham Hill
Edenbridge
Kent
TN8 6TD

Bankers Co-operative Bank
164/165 Western Road
Brighton
BN1 2BB

Page 1

Page 31



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Structure, Governance and Management

Overview

The governing documents of the Charity are a conveyance from the Crown to Hastings Corporation dated 8
September 1893 and Charity Commission Scheme ref. no, 981/1011 made on 13 January 2011 (the 2011
Scheme).

The 1893 Conveyance provides that the length of foreshore between Ecclesbourne Glen and Grosvenor Gardens
shall be held for the common use, benefit and enjoyment of Her Majesty's subjects and the public generally for
ever. Later conveyances in 1925, 1933 and 1934 conveyed the remainder of the foreshore to the Hastings
Corporation on the same Trusts.

The Hastings Borough Council Act 1988 varies the Trusts to permit certain uses on delineated areas of land and
for the Council to charge for that use, whether provided by the Council itself or by another on the Council's
behalf.

The 2011 Scheme extended the objects of the Charity to include such charitable purposes within the Borough of
Hastings as the Trustee thinks fit.

The 2011 Scheme had the effect of revoking the Charity Commission Scheme dated 22 March 2006 which
appointed independent Trustees and Council nominated Trustees and appointing Hastings Borough Council as
the Trustee for all purposes. This report is prepared by the Trustee as required under the 2011 Scheme.

Significant changes

Following the Borough Council elections in May 2014 there has been a new appointment to the Charity
Committee of Councillor Emily Westley. Councillor Jay Kramer has stepped down.

Governance

i) The Trustee, Hastings Borough Council, is a principal local authority established under the Local Government
Act 1972 and, as such, has corporate status. As a local authority, the Trustee acts through decisions of elected
members and delegations to committees, sub-committees and officers. The Local Government Act 2000
introduced executive decision making and the legislation provided for a split between decisions which are
reserved to the Council, to the Executive or according to local choice. Where the function in question is not
reserved to Council or a local choice function, the default provision in the legislation is that the function and
decision-making relating to it are the preserve of the executive. This represents the position regarding the
Council's function or power to administer charities, that is to say that the administration of charities is an
executive function and so only the Cabinet, a committee of Cabinet or officers acting under delegations from
Cabinet are legally competent to make decisions relating to the Charity.

This means that for the Foreshore Trust, the Council as Trustee acts through the Charity Committee of Cabinet.

ii) The Protector

When considering the request of the former independent Trustees to appoint the Council as Trustee, the
Commission was concerned regarding the potential conflict of interest between the Council's position as
charitable Trustee and as local authority and how to address this. Part of the solution was the requirement in the
2011 Scheme for the appointment of a Protector, who is required to be a qualified accountant. The present
Protector is Christopher May MA, FCA, who was appointed as first Protector and has been subsequently
reappointed for a further three year term of office. The job of the Protector is essentially to act as whistle blower
and watchdog against the Council acting in breach of trust and to guard against situations where a conflict of
interest is not being managed properly. As a chartered accountant he is equipped to scrutinise the Council's
charity accounts. The Protector is required to report any matters of serious concern to the Charity Commission
and must prepare an annual report on his activities for inclusion in the Charity's Annual Report.

Page 2

Page 32



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Consultation

The 2011 Scheme makes provision for consultation in two areas of the Charity's operation.

i) Coastal Users Group

The Trustee is required to consult with and have regard to the recommendations of the Coastal Users Group
(CUG) in relation to certain matters, namely:-

• the standards or specifications for the maintenance of the charity's land

•
the Charity's policy relating to events and activities to be held on the Charity's land and any
event/activity outside that policy

•
the Charity's policy relating to the exercise of any power under the Hastings Borough Council Act
1988 or otherwise to manage, let, sell or otherwise dispose of the Charity's property

•
the exercise of the powers under the previous bullet otherwise than in accordance with the agreed
policy.

The CUG was an existing consultative group set up by the Council as local authority to consult with interested
parties in relation to matters affecting the front line of the Council's area. It became the Coastal Advisory Group
required by the 2011 Scheme after adopting a formal constitution and rules for membership in early 2011. The
minutes of its meetings, in so far as they relate to Foreshore Trust matters, are included in the reports submitted
to each Charity Committee meeting.

The CUG meets before each Charity Committee meeting (four times a year) to consider and comment on reports
being submitted to the Charity Committee. The CUG is consulted each time the Foreshore Trust Business Plan
is revised. During 2013/14, they were also consulted upon the details of various business plan projects –
contributions to FLAG Stade projects, Pelham cycle hire, car park information signs, play equipment – and
policy decisions such as the new angling club lease, seafront byelaws, acceptance of credit cards for parking
charges and new disabled parking bays.

ii) Grant Advisory Panel

The object to distribute surpluses, after meeting the costs of administering the Charity and managing its assets
(including the repair and insurance of its land and buildings), through grants for charitable purposes in the
Borough, is subject to consultation with the Grant Advisory Panel. The 2011 Scheme provides that consultation
is to take place concerning the grant criteria, grant processes and grant determinations. During 13/14 three new
members were appointed, making eight in total The members of the Panel are independent of the Council and
are required to have knowledge and experience of the voluntary and charity sector, particularly in Hastings.

The Grants Advisory Panel successfully concluded the process of prioritising the year's round of grant making,
resulting in the award of grants totalling £38,044 and grants for events totalling £8,540 during 2013/14 (2012/13
£49,980, events £0).

The following grants were awarded in the year:-

£
Hastings and District Interfaith Forum 1,000

Fellowship of St Nicholas 3,741

Tempo Arts 4,866

Hastings Old Town Residents Association - Story telling 3,800

Hastings Chinese Association 2,100

St Michaels Hospice 2,500

Hastings & Rother Mediation 1,147

Park Road Toddler Group 400

Page 3

Page 33



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Gizmo The DIY Theatre Company 3,500

The Links Project 4,500

The Snowflake Trust 3,740

Hastings United Youth Football Trust 1,750

Citizens Advice 1066 5,000

The following grants for events were awarded in the year:-

£
Hastings Borough Bonfire Society 2,000

Gizmo The DIY Theatre Company 808

Radiator Arts 1,945

Claremont Studios 1,987

Photo Hub Group & Stade Partnership 1,800

Delegation to Officers

At its first meeting on 25 January 2011, the Charity Committee agreed a Scheme of Delegation to Officers.
From 1 April 2012 the Scheme of Delegations has required amending, replacing the Chief Executive with
appropriate Director and his/her nominee as a result of a senior management restructure. The new Scheme of
Delegations follows the pattern of the Council's Scheme of Delegations to Officers, in that the appropriate
Director or their duly authorised nominee is authorised within the plan and budget agreed by the Charity
Committee to undertake the day to day operation and management of the Charity. The authority is general and
subject to certain exceptions including the disposal of land, use of the Charity's land for events outside of the
agreed policy, grants for charitable purposes and specification for and the award of contracts affecting the
Charity, which are all subject to consultation and then the decision of the Charity Committee. The Scheme of
Delegation emphasises that the Directors or their nominees acting under the delegations must be mindful that
they are acting on behalf of the Charity and not the Council and ensure that at all times they act in the best
interests of the Charity.

The officers authorised for most purposes affecting the Charity's day to day operation and management are:-

• Virginia Gilbert, Head of Leisure and Amenities Services

• Peter Grace, Head of Finance

• Amy Terry, Estates Manager

•
Christine Barkshire-Jones is the Chief Legal Officer and the Authorised Signatory on behalf of the
Charity.

In case of actual or potential conflict of interest for officers, independent advisors are instructed on behalf of the
Charity e.g. surveyors.

• Jane Hartnell, Monitoring Officer

Training and Induction for the Trustee

Training is provided for members and officers covering training on the history of the Trust, the constitutional
documentation of the Trust and how to put those into effect.

Training has been offered to all members of the Council to raise awareness and to keep them advised.

Page 4

Page 34



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Risk Management

The charity maintains a risk register and formally reviews this on an annual basis when determining the reserves
policy. Initially this identified the key financial risks facing the Trust, but continues to be developed to include
the identification of all significant risks (it also includes the identification of relevant controls to mitigate and
responsibilities).

Objectives

The 2011 Scheme states the objects of the Charity to be:-

i) to hold and maintain the charity's land for the objects set out in the trusts of the Charity, namely for the
common use, benefit and enjoyment of all Her Majesty's subjects and of the public for the time being for ever;
and

ii) subject to i) above, such charitable purposes within the area of the Borough of Hastings as the Trustee thinks
fit.

The Scheme expressly provides that income and capital are first to be applied in meeting the proper costs of
administering the Charity and of managing its assets including the repair and insurance of its land and buildings.
After payment of these costs, the Trustee must apply the remaining income in furthering the objects of the
Charity.

Achievements and Performance

This has been the third full financial year for the Council as Trustee of the Foreshore Trust. The Charity
Committee met four times during the year and the main business has been:

• the second annual review of the Trust’s rolling five-year Business Plan

• the third round of small grant awards (up to £5,000) to local charitable organisations

• new criteria and awards for the first round of grants (up to £2,000) for events on Foreshore Trust land;

•
support for further investigations into bringing the White Rock Baths back into use, resulting in the
refurbishment of the promenade building into a new hub for the Pier Trust and acceptance of a plan for
refurbishment of the under-promenade spaces in partnership with a prospective tenant

•
development of the Classroom on the Coast, a fish cookery training facility in the Stade Hall, funded in
part by the Fisheries Local Action Group (FLAG)

•
agreement to provide match funding to FLAG projects for Stade beach improvements and
enhancements to the Stade Open Space

• agreement of the budget for 2014/15 and financial report

In addition, whilst the Council undertook the role as Trustee from January 2011, it has been operating and
managing the Foreshore and its assets without interruption over many years. The operations include:

• keeping the Charity's land safe and clean

• operating the Charity's car parks

• managing its tenanted premises

• arranging and facilitating events on the Foreshore

• undertaking routine maintenance and repair

Page 5

Page 35



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Stade Development

The Stade area is partly in Council ownership and partly in Trust ownership. The development is the
combination of the Jerwood Gallery and the Stade Open Space, community facilities (the Stade Hall and public
toilets with exceptional disabled accommodation) and Stade café. The Jerwood Gallery, on Council owned land,
is privately funded but the other facilities result from the Council’s application for funding from the
Commission for Architecture and the Built Environment (CABE), South East England Development Agency
(SEEDA), East Sussex County Council, with significant funding also being provided by Hastings Borough
Council. Management of the Stade Open Space (approximately 60% in Trust ownership) and the Stade Hall
(wholly Trust owned) is being undertaken by the Council on behalf of the Foreshore Trust. The use of the
facilities is overseen by a Management Advisory Committee of community representatives established in 2013.
In summer 2013, the ‘Stade Saturdays’ programme of cultural events continued as the cornerstone of summer
use of the Open Space as a community and cultural venue.

White Rock Baths

The Trust is keen to see the use, or at least the partial use of the White Rock bath site. To this end it had spent
£207,840 of project costs in the year to 31 March 2014 (2012/13 £75,450) on remedial drainage works and
making the promenade building ready for tenant rental. It is expected that further works will be undertaken in
the below-promenade spaces in readiness for a new BMX activity facility there, to be opened during 2015/16.

Leases

The following leases were completed during the period:

•
Land at the Stade on 7 October 2013 – a new agreement for land supporting a balcony on the East
Hasting Sea Angling Association clubhouse.

• Land at the Stade on 24 October 2013 - renewal of the agreement for the Go Kart Track land.

•
Upper Promenade Building at White Rock Baths on 10 December 2013 - a new lease to Hastings Pier
Charity of part of the building, known as ‘the Hub’, used as an information/visitor centre for the Pier.

•
Land at the Stade on 7 January 2014 – a renewal of the agreement for the land comprising Hastings &
St Leonards Angling Association clubhouse and boat compound.

Terms have been agreed with the tenant of the Stade Amusement area to be granted a new lease following the
completion of significant improvements to the leased area including the boating lake.

Public Benefit

The objects of the Charity express clearly that the Foreshore is to be held for the benefit of Her Majesty’s
subjects and the public generally for ever. Where the land is beach and beach alone, the objects are achieved by
ensuring that the public have free and safe access to the Foreshore. However, maintaining land in proper
condition has a cost and the Charity requires an income to meet its expenditure. The Hastings Borough Council
Act 1988 varied the original Trusts to permit certain uses on defined areas of the Trust’s land. For example, paid
parking was permissible at Rock a Nore Car Park and at Pelham Car Park and leisure facilities were permitted in
the Stade area. These variations to the Trust powers enabled the generation of income to meet the costs of
maintaining the Foreshore. The uses permitted under the Act, however, are seen as complementary to the Trust
objects and the Trustee will exercise its powers under the Act to satisfy the requirement for the benefit to the
public.

So far as is possible and subject to the uses permitted under the Act, the aim of the Trustees is that the Foreshore
should be accessible by all members of the public who wish to visit it. At the same time, part of the Foreshore is
a working beach and so health and safety considerations apply.

Page 6

Page 36



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

The 2011 Scheme included a new object to distribute surpluses as grants for charitable purposes within the
Borough of Hastings. The first round of small grant distribution took place in 2011/12 and was repeated in
2012/13 and 2013/14.

The Trustee has indicated a willingness to undertake further capital works to assets such as the former White
Rock Baths if financially sustainable uses which conform to the Trust’s objects are identified.

There will be different views on how the public benefit is best achieved and the Charity Committee will
continue to consult with the Coastal Users’ Group on proposals for the future of the Foreshore and specifications
and standards of maintenance and with the Grant Advisory Panel on the grant criteria and grants processes.

This section should be read in conjunction with the preceding paragraph (Achievements and Performance).

Financial Review

The annual accounts are attached to this report. The presentation of the accounts has been enhanced to include
more detail in the reserves, by way of note, and, once again, have received an unqualified audit opinion by
external auditors.

The Trust’s main sources of income remain that of car parking fees and charges and rental income from
property. The expenditure that the Trust incurs is as a result of providing the car parks e.g. operating costs, and
the costs of maintaining and developing the foreshore .

Investments – The Trust retains significant cash balances. At 31 March 2014 these were invested as follows:-

CCLA Investment Management - £ 1,837,200 (31 March 2013 £2,168,959)

Co-op Bank- £ 742 (31 March 2013 £727) (the Trust’s Bank Account)

The following table compares the major elements of the budget to the actual income and expenditure:-

Statement of Financial Activities
Budget Revised Actual

Estimate Budget Outturn
£000's £000's £000's

Incoming Resources
Investment Income 15 9 8

Income from Charitable activities 1,079 1,070 1,093

Total Incoming Resources 1,094 1,079 1,100

Resources Expended
Charitable activities 742 741 760

Maintenance and Cyclical repairs 122 81 78

Governance Costs HBC 51 56 56

Governance Costs (Other) 35 41 32

Total Resources Expended 950 946 926

Surplus before Grants and Reserve Funded items 144 133 174

Grants (including p/y underspend) 70 44 41

Projects and Other Expenditure 435 375 349

Surplus/(Deficit) (361) (286) (216)

Page 7

Page 37



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

In brief, income levels have been sustained this year, whilst expenditure has been reduced from the original
budget. Spend and commitments on projects and other expenditure includes £207,870 on White Rock Baths
(2012/13 £75,450), £11,770 on beach front play areas and equipment (2012/13 £171,990), £33,901 on Pelham
Car park (2012/13 £179,262) £35,266 on FLAG Stade projects, £11,770 on new chalets and £ 77,910 (2012/13
£58,810) on maintenance and cyclical repairs.

The outturn position was a deficit of £140,657 after capitalisation of £75,330 (2012/13 deficit of £36,557) which
has been taken from reserves. The surplus before grants and reserve funded items was £174,000.

Future Expenditure Plans 2014/15 and beyond

In line with the approved Business plan, expenditure on major Projects and Other Expenditure will continue in
2014/15 and will result in an overall deficit for the year, currently budgeted at some £249,000 – this being
funded from Reserves.

The 14/15 budget identifies spend on projects and other expenditure amounting to some £458,000. £54,000 of
this spend is on cyclical repairs and maintenance and £423,000 is programmed spend, financed from Reserves.
The main areas of spend are as follows:-

•
£188,000 – Stade FLAG projects capital contributions to Big Beach Environmentally sustainable
tourism and Transforming Stade Open Space

• £60,000 – Improved Car Park signage and railings

• £150,000 – Contribution to £822,000 funding package for the White Rock Baths

The current business plan includes the following for Projects and Other Expenditure for the years 2013/14 to
2015/16:

Business Plan 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2014/16
Actual Estimate* Estimate Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's

Projects and other espenditure
Cyclical Repairs and Redecorations
Pier Area 3 3 6

White Rock Baths 15 15

Stade Barriers 2 2 2 4

Cycle Route -

Public Conveniences 58 6 6 12

Car Parks 7 12 12 24

Total of Cyclical Repairs 67 23 38 61

Maintenance Projects
Pier Area 30 30

Beach 11 1 27 28

Total Maintenance Projects 11 31 27 69

Main Programme
White Rock Baths 208 150 350 500

Marina Chalets 11 -

Big Beach Project 36 163 163

Beachfront 60 25 25

Rock a Nore Car Park 40 40

Pelham Place Car Park 34 20 20

Page 8

Page 38



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Contingency 25 25 50

Total Main Programme 349 423 375 798

Total Projects and other expenditure 427 477 440 928

* 2014/15 estimate adjusted for 2013/14 actual figures (and revisions to the business plan)

Cost of Professional advice

Professional advisor fees - £20,260 (2012/13 £19,050)

Auditors/Accountants - £ 3,500 (2012/13 £3,500)

Trustee Expenses and emoluments

There were no Trustee expenses charged to the Trust in 2013/14.

£6,060 was paid in 2013/14 (2012/13 £5,240) as a special responsibility allowance to the chair of the charity
committee and this is shown as Governance costs in the accounts.

Reserves Policy

The policy is reviewed on a regular basis to take account of changes in the future plans of the Trust and
perceived risks; the last review being 30th June 2014. Reserves are maintained for a variety of reasons and the
main points of the Policy are reproduced below. Namely:-

a) An amount might be needed to meet an unforeseen emergency or other unexpected need. This amount is
arrived at after considering risks and how much might be needed for such contingencies; this involves judgment 
of events that may occur and their likelihood.

Policy: £100,000 be retained to meet an unforeseen emergency or other unexpected event.

b) Expenditure budget - a small contingency fund to meet unforeseen operational costs.

The expenditure budget is some £950,000. It is suggested that a 10% contingency (say £90,000) be retained for
unexpected and unforeseen operational expenditure.

c) Uncertainty over future income. Most well run organisations retain reserves equivalent to a number of weeks
or months of income equivalent to allow time to develop new sources of income or to cut-back on related
expenditure.

Potential significant loss of income could result from a downturn in economic activity or an increase in fuel
costs resulting in fewer tourists, a major disaster in the area, bad weather, pollution incident, or loss of
reputation e.g. bathing water deterioration, etc.

It is recommended that the equivalent of 6 months income be retained to cater for this risk which would amount
to around £½ million.

d) Planned spending commitments which cannot be met from future income would imply a need for a specific
sum to be set aside - often this amount will be included within designations in the accounts.

Given the predicted surplus for each year there is scope to include some of the recurring planned expenditure
within the annual budget. There are higher cost initiatives e.g. resurfacing of car parks, roadways, etc, that will
necessitate identification and retention of significant sums within the accounts.

e) Cash Flow – organisations require a working balance to cover 'troughs' in the cash budget.

Page 9

Page 39



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Based on the financial year the cash flow is expected to be positive throughout the year i.e. income generated
should exceed expenditure. Where significant one off expenditure is incurred e.g. resurfacing, use of reserves
would be used to cover any shortfalls. As such no sum is set aside for this specific purpose – especially given
the sums detailed above (a to d).

f) In summary the Reserves to be retained amount to :-

Ref Risk Area/Designated Funds Amount (£)
a) Unforeseen emergency/event 100,000

b) Unforeseen operational costs/contingency 90,000

c) Uncertainty on income streams 500,000

Total 690,000

Plus Planned Spending Commitments e.g. repairs and other initiatives identified within the business plan.

The total funds of the Trust, of which the above form a part, amount to £1,846,101 (2013 £1,986,753).The
financing of the main programme is dependent upon achieving annual surpluses on the trusts main activities,
given the level of Reserves being retained.

Plans for the Future

The Charity Committee looks to review its Business Plan on a regular basis to take account of known variations
in resources and new opportunities and commitments. Subject to the Scheme’s predetermination that meeting
the cost of the administration and the repair and maintenance of its existing assets is the first priority; this will
involve consideration of proposals for enhancing income generation and/or reducing operating expenditure as
well as providing better facilities and attractions for the public benefit.

Accountants, Auditors and Bankers

The Trust has been grateful for the excellent work of Manningtons (Auditors) in meeting the early closedown of
the accounts – due to the need to report within 6 months of the end of the financial year.

The Trust’s monies are managed by the Council, the same bankers are used (Co-operative Bank), albeit that
separate bank accounts are retained. The Council’s comprehensive Treasury Management and Investment Policy
requirements equally apply when dealing with Trust monies.

Concluding Remarks

The transfer of the trusteeship to the Council in January 2011 concluded a long and difficult process. The
Council has previously thanked the former trustees who were involved in the trust immediately before it
transferred to the Council. The Trust and Council also owes a debt of gratitude to Councillor Jay Kramer who
has served on the Charity Committee since the transfer of the Trust to the Council in January 2011 until May
20124 and has been instrumental in ensuring the trust operates on a sound footing, with effective governance
arrangements in place.

The Trust continues to concentrate efforts on ensuring a secure and viable future for the Trust, especially in
terms of maintaining and improving its assets, managing its available resources for the long term benefit of the
community, and also in the distribution of grants to the benefit of the Community - as resources permit.

Page 10

Page 40



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Report

Approved by the Trustee on 29 September 2014

.........................................

Councillor John Hodges
Chair of Charity Committee

Page 11

Page 41



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Protector's Report

This is my fourth Annual Report as Protector of The Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust
(“Foreshore Trust” for short). It covers my activities from September 2013 to the date of this report. I was
reappointed as Protector in March 2014 for a further three-year term.

The rules of the Foreshore Trust call for the appointment of a Protector to safeguard the proper management of
this charitable trust and, in particular, the resolution of any conflicts of interest that may arise from time to time
between Hastings Borough Council (“HBC”) acting as Trustee of this charity and HBC acting in its capacity as
local authority. To this end, the rules provide that the general duty of the Protector is “to ensure the integrity of
the administration of the charity”, in other words to act as a watchdog over the activities of HBC’s Charity
Committee in managing the affairs of the Foreshore Trust.

I have attended all meetings of the Charity Committee save for that held on 30 June 2014, and certain of the
meetings of the sub-committees (including the Grant Advisory Panel and the Stade Hall Advisory Committee –
see next paragraph).

Under the constitution of the Foreshore Trust the Trustee must consult two advisory bodies: (1) a nominated
consultative and advisory group (currently the Coastal Users’ Group “CUG”) in relation to major foreshore
management issues, and (2) the Grant Advisory Panel (“GAP”) which deals with the detailed process of
recommending grants to be made by the Trustee under powers given in the Scheme. A further advisory
committee was formed in 2012, dealing with the management of the Stade Hall. The Protector is entitled to
attend the meetings of these groups, though in practice I do not routinely do so. I do however receive notices and
minutes of their meetings.

I note that there is under consideration a proposal to make the White Rock Baths site available for a BMX and
skateboard park, incorporating investment on the part of the Foreshore Trust, Hastings Borough Council, East
Sussex County Council and the Company which will install and operate the facility. My understanding is that a
substantial part of the Foreshore Trust’s investment is to be financed by borrowings. Since the Foreshore Trust
has not previously raised loan finance, it will be necessary for the Foreshore Trust to review its constitution
document (the Scheme dated 15 January 2011) to ensure it has, or can arrange to obtain, the necessary power to
borrow money – this process is already under way. Assuming that the project goes ahead, and that the attendant
financial risks are satisfactorily shared and managed, this looks to be an attractive way of bringing the White
Rock Baths site back into use, and looks to be much the most viable proposal for the site that has so far been
considered.

During the year I have been satisfied that the Trustee (Hastings Borough Council), acting through its Charity
Committee, has satisfactorily ensured the integrity of the administration the affairs of the Foreshore Trust, as
required by the current Scheme of constitution.

Christopher May FCA

Protector

18 September 2014

Page 12

Page 42



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Trustee's Responsibilities in relation to the Financial Statements

The trustee is responsible for preparing the Trustee's Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice).

The law applicable to charities in England and Wales requires the trustee to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the incoming
resources and application of resources of the charity for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
trustee is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charity will continue in business.

The trustee is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the charity and enable him to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Charities Act 2011, the Charity (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the provisions of the trust deed.
He is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charity and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection fraud and other irregularities.

The trustee is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charity and financial information included on
the charity's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Page 13

Page 43



Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee of

Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

We have audited the financial statements of Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2014, set out on pages 16 to 23. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the charity's trustee, as a body, in accordance with section 144 of the Charities Act
2011 and regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the trustee those matters we are required to state to trustee in an auditors' report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charity
and its trustee as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of trustees and auditors

As explained more fully in the Trustee's Responsibilities Statement set out on page 13, the trustee is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and fair view.

We have been appointed as auditors under section 144 of the Charities Act 2011 and report in accordance with
regulations made under section 154 of that Act. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the charity's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the trustee; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Trustee's Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the charity's affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Charities Act 2011.

Page 14

Page 44



Independent Auditors' Report to the Trustee of

Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

......... continued

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Charities Act 2011 requires us to report
to you if, in our opinion:

- the information given in the Trustee's Annual Report is inconsistent in any material respect with the financial
statements; or

- sufficient accounting records have not been kept; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

.........................................
Manningtons
Statutory Auditor

Date:................................

7 Wellington Square
Hastings
East Sussex
TN34 1PD

Manningtons is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006

Page 15

Page 45



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

Unrestricted
Funds

Total Funds
2014

Total Funds
2013

Note £ £ £

Incoming resources
Incoming resources from generated funds

Investment income 2 7,741 7,741 14,188

Incoming resources from charitable activities 3 1,092,720 1,092,720 1,019,263

Total incoming resources 1,100,461 1,100,461 1,033,451

Resources expended
Charitable activities 4 1,153,317 1,153,317 965,864

Governance costs 5 87,801 87,801 104,143

Total resources expended 1,241,118 1,241,118 1,070,007

Net outgoing resources before transfers (140,657) (140,657) (36,556)

Transfers
Gross transfers between funds - - -

Net movements in funds (140,657) (140,657) (36,556)

Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 1,986,758 1,986,758 2,023,314

Total funds carried forward 1,846,101 1,846,101 1,986,758

All incoming resources and resources expended derive from continuing activities.

The charity has no recognised gains or losses for the year other than the results above.

The notes on pages 18 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 16

Page 46



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2014

2014 2013

Note £ £ £ £

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 7 529,086 483,478

Current assets

Bank balances 1,837,943 2,169,691

Creditors: Amounts falling
due within one year 8 (520,928) (666,411)

Net current assets 1,317,015 1,503,280

Net assets 1,846,101 1,986,758

The funds of the charity:

Unrestricted funds

Unrestricted income funds 1,846,101 1,986,758

Total charity funds 1,846,101 1,986,758

These accounts were approved by the Trustee on 29 September 2014

.........................................

Councillor John Hodges
Chair of Charity Committee

The notes on pages 18 to 23 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Page 17

Page 47



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities (SORP 2005)', issued in
March 2005, applicable accounting standards and the Charities Act 2011.

Fund accounting policy

Unrestricted income funds are general funds that are available for use at the trustees' discretion in
furtherance of the objectives of the charity.

Designated funds are unrestricted funds set aside at the discretion of the trustees for specific purposes.

Further details of each fund are disclosed in note 10.

Incoming resources

Investment income is recognised on a receivable basis.

Income from charitable activities includes income recognised as earned (as the related goods or services
are provided) under contract.

Resources expended

Liabilities are recognised as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the charity to the
expenditure. All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has been classified under headings
that aggregate all costs related to the category.

Charitable expenditure comprises those costs incurred by the charity in the delivery of its activities and
services for its beneficiaries. It includes both costs that can be allocated directly to such activities and those
costs of an indirect nature necessary to support them.

Grants payable are payments made to third parties in the furtherance of the charitable objectives. Where
the charity gives a grant with conditions for its payment being a specific level of service or output to be
provided, such grants are only recognised in the SoFA once the recipient of the grant has provided the
specific service or output.

Grants payable without performance conditions are only recognised in the accounts when a commitment
has been made and there are no conditions to be met relating to the grant which remain in the control of the
charity.

Provisions for grants are made when the intention to make a grant has been communicated to the recipient
but there is uncertainty about either the timing of the grant or the amount of grant payable.

Governance costs

Governance costs include costs of the preparation and examination of the statutory accounts, the costs of
trustee meetings and the cost of any legal advice to trustees on governance or constitutional matters.

Page 18

Page 48



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

......... continued

Fixed assets

Individual fixed assets costing £500 or more are initially recorded at cost.

The land comprising the foreshore of Hastings and St Leonards was sold to the Trust by the Crown in
September 1893 for £400 and subsequent purchases between 1925 and 1934 for a further £630. No 
valuation of this land has ever been carried out and it is recorded at cost. Land valued at £95,000 was
acquired in 2010 as part of a land swap with Hastings Borough Council. Additional expenditure of
£119,490 in 2013 represents the cost of creating additional car parking spaces within the Pelham Place car
park. This is being depreciated over 15 years, being the estimated time before re-surfacing becomes
necessary. The trustee is of the opinion that the open market value is materially in excess of the carrying
value of the land.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on tangible fixed assets so as to write off the cost or valuation, less any estimated
residual value, over their expected useful economic life as follows:

Land not depreciated
Pelham Place car park additional spaces over 15 years straight line
Plant and equipment over 15 years straight line

Staff and pension schemes

The charity has no employees but is charged the relevant portion of those undertaking work in pursuance
of the charity's objectives. These are employed by Hastings Borough Council and have the choice of being
in the relevant defined benefit local government pension scheme.

2 Investment income

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Total Funds
2014

£

Total Funds
2013

£

Interest on cash deposits 7,741 7,741 14,188

Page 19

Page 49



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

......... continued

3 Incoming resources from charitable activities

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Total Funds
2014

£

Total Funds
2013

£

Car parking

Car parking 914,830 914,830 841,320

Other income 630 630 -

915,460 915,460 841,320

Foreshore management

Rents 162,910 162,910 163,523

Other income 13,200 13,200 14,420

176,110 176,110 177,943

Street cleansing

Other income 1,150 1,150 -

1,092,720 1,092,720 1,019,263

4 Details of charitable activities

Activities
undertaken

directly
£

Grant
funding of
activities

£

2014
£

2013
£

Car parking 260,462 - 260,462 285,986

Foreshore management 356,137 - 356,137 297,773

Street cleansing 87,770 - 87,770 91,270

Public conveniences 192,384 - 192,384 165,405

White Rock Baths 213,104 - 213,104 75,450

Grant making - 43,460 43,460 49,980

1,109,857 43,460 1,153,317 965,864

Page 20

Page 50



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

......... continued

5 Governance costs

Unrestricted
Funds

£

Total Funds
2014

£

Total Funds
2013

£

Employment costs 6,060 6,060 5,240

Sundry and other costs 1,107 1,107 150

HBC management charges 55,980 55,980 66,620

Auditors' remuneration 3,500 3,500 3,500

Legal and professional costs 21,154 21,154 28,633

87,801 87,801 104,143

6 Trustee's remuneration and expenses

Payments to the Trustee related entirely to recharges of costs incurred by HBC on behalf of the charity.
These included a payment by HBC to the Chair of the Charity Committee of HBC by way of a
responsibility allowance from the Council of £6,060 (2013 - £5,240), included in Governance costs.

Page 21

Page 51



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

......... continued

7 Tangible fixed assets

Freehold
interest in land
and buildings

£

Plant and
equipment

£
Total

£

Cost

As at 1 April 2013 204,490 299,338 503,828

Additions 11,030 62,500 73,530

As at 31 March 2014 215,520 361,838 577,358

Depreciation

As at 1 April 2013 - 20,350 20,350

Charge for the year 7,966 19,956 27,922

As at 31 March 2014 7,966 40,306 48,272

Net book value

As at 31 March 2014 207,554 321,532 529,086

As at 31 March 2013 204,490 278,988 483,478

8 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2014
£

2013
£

Amounts owed to Hastings Borough Council 517,428 662,911

Accruals and deferred income 3,500 3,500

520,928 666,411

9 Capital commitments

Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial statements:

2014
£

2013
£

Pelham Place Car Park extension and resurfacing works - 54,012

Page 22

Page 52



Hastings and St Leonards Foreshore Charitable Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2014

......... continued

10 Analysis of funds

At 1 April
2013

Incoming
resources

Resources
expended Transfers

At 31
March 2014

£ £ £ £ £

Designated Funds
Contingency reserve 695,000 - - (5,000) 690,000

Main programme reserve 808,280 - - (181,265) 627,015

1,503,280 - - (186,265) 1,317,015

General Funds
Fixed asset fund 483,478 - - 45,608 529,086

Unappropriated reserve - 1,100,461 (1,241,118) 140,657 -

483,478 1,100,461 (1,241,118) 186,265 529,086

1,986,758 1,100,461 (1,241,118) - 1,846,101

Purposes of funds:

The Fixed asset fund is created to recognise that an equivalent amount of reserves has already been used,
and is not available for further use.

The Unappropriated reserve represents all monies for which a specific purpose remains to be determined.

The Main programme reserve is held to fund the Trust's business plan initiatives and significant items of
repair and maintenance that cannot be financed in a single year.

Page 23

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 

$qwcrfplq 
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Agenda Item No: 8 

 

Report to: Charity Committee 

 

Date of Meeting: 29 September 2014 

 

Report Title: Former Ladies Toilets under Promenade at Verulam Place 

 

Report By: Peter Grace 

 Head of Finance 

 

Purpose of Report 

To report on proposed terms for a new lease 
 

Recommendation(s) 

1. That Charity Committee agrees to the grant of a lease of the former ladies 
toilets to Hastings Pier Charity (HPC) 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

The terms of the proposed lease are considered to be less than the best price 
obtainable in compliance with the exceptions under the Charities Act 2011  
 
 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



$qwcrfplq  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

Background 

1. The toilets, which are located underground to the east of the Pier underground car 
park, are shown on the appended plan.  They were closed to the public in 2002 and 
have not been used since. 

2. To secure the long term financial sustainability of the Pier HPC needs to generate 
sufficient income to fund ongoing maintenance costs. 

3. The restoration and redevelopment includes the main structure of the Pier itself 
plus the development of the Pavilion restaurant and the new visitor centre.  To 
generate the required footfall to sustain the business plan HPC will be 
implementing a seasonal events strategy.  Both the events strategy and the 
planned maintenance programme will require significant off-site facilities which 
cannot be provided on the Pier itself.   

4. The toilets are ideally located to provide these facilities and securing their use will 
help sustain the business plan for the attraction into the long term.  Potential uses 
will include storage, maintenance equipment, incoming utilities, event staff facilities 
including changing and showers as well as toilet facilities for the public for certain 
events in the programme. 

5. HPC have already been granted a lease of the Council owned former gentlemen's 
toilets at the western end of the Pier underground car park.  The potential uses 
referred to above will be divided between the two sets of toilets. 

Proposed Lease 

6. HPC would like a lease term to be coterminous with the former gentlemen's toilets 
which is for 99 years from 11 June 2014.  The rent would also be the same at £1 
per annum if demanded. 

Coastal Users Group 

7. The Coast Users Group considered the proposal at their meeting on 9 September 
2014, and no adverse comments were received. 

Monitoring Officer's Comments 

8. The Charities Act 2011 provides that certain disposals of land (such as leases) are 
excepted from the rigorous procedures when disposing of the Trust's assets. In this 
case the disposal is made to another Charity either as a gift or for less than the 
best price obtainable. 

 

 

 

Wards Affected 

Page 56



$qwcrfplq  
Report Template v25.0 

 
Page 3 of 3 

None 
 

Area(s) Affected 

None 
 

Policy Implications 

Please identify if this report contains any implications for the following: 
 
Equalities and Community Cohesiveness No 
Crime and Fear of Crime (Section 17)  No 
Risk Management     No 
Environmental Issues    No 
Economic/Financial Implications   No 
Human Rights Act     No 
Organisational Consequences   No 
Local People’s Views    No 
 

Background Information 

Plan ESAD 1614A 
 

Officer to Contact 

Amy Terry 
aterry@hastings.gov.uk 
01424 451640 
 

 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Hotel

11

16

Car Park

Norman Court

SM

PC

TCB

1 to 10

1 to 15

Shelter

Shingle

South African

War Meml

SM

Shelter

Ladies Underground Toilets
Verulam Place
Hastings

Oct 2013 ST ESAD 1614A

±
© Crown Copyright and database right [2013]. Ordnance Survey [100021328]

1:500Date: Scale:

Estates Manager:
Amy Terry M.R.I.C.S.
Aquila House, Breeds Place,
Hastings, East Sussex TN34 3UY
Tel: 01424 451085      Fax: 01424 451515
email: estates@hastings.gov.uk

Drawn: Drawing No:

VERULAM PLACE

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Extract of Foreshore Trust Items from 

 
NOTES of 
Hastings & St. Leonards Coastal Users’ Group 
Meeting held on Tuesday, 9th September 2014 @ 1800hrs. 
 
Present: 
Laurence Bell, White Rock & America Ground Business Group 
Jill Bradley, HOTRA 
Glyn Carter 
Paul Carter, East Hastings Angling Association (Chair) 
Kevin Boorman, HBC Head of Marketing & Communications 
Christine Boulton-Lane, West of Haven Beach Users Association 
Di Cooke, Hastings Lifeguards 
Virginia Gilbert, HBC Head of Amenities, Resorts & Leisure Services 
Cllr Mike Howard, HBC (West St Leonards Ward) 
Simon Hubbard, Director Regeneration, HBC 
Paul Joy, Hastings Fishermen’s Protection Society 
Cherry Longley, HBC 
Brendon McDonagh, Hotels and Tourism Association 
Cliff Meaden, Hastings Windsurfing 
Andre Palfrey-Martin, Nautical Heritage Assoc/Gensing & Central St. Leo Forum 
Yasmin Ornsby, Stade Partnership 
Steve Peak, Friends of Hastings Country Park 
Councillor Dawn Poole, HBC 
Chris Richards, Hastings Adventure Golf 
Simon Opie, Hastings Pier Charity 
Nick Sangster, HBC Resort Services Manager 
Anne Scott, Old Hastings Preservation Society 
Jacqui Stanford, Shipwreck Museum 
Cllr. Trevor Webb, HBC (Central St. Leonards Ward) 
 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES 
 Alan Care, Hastings and Rother Disability Forum 

Cllr. Lee Clarke, HBC (Castle Ward) 
 Tim Godwin, HUB 

Jan Sellers, Fishermen's Museum 
 Cllr. Emily Westley, HBC 
 
 
 
2. FORESHORE TRUST ITEMS 
 
2.1 White Rock Baths  

 SH presented this item.  He reminded the Group of the background to this project 
and the importance of bringing this building back into use.  The Source BMX Facility 
will provide a skatepark and retail point with ramps in the open courtyards, together 
with a café and media suite.  The facility will operate 7 days per week and eventually 
it is hoped it will create 30 jobs.  The indicative project costs are £1m+.  Funding 
support has been gained from The Source itself, ESCC, ESCC loan and the 
Foreshore Trust.  It is hoped that bidding into the Coastal Communities Fund will also 

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



assist.  Design works are expected to commence in September/October with an on-
site start Spring 2015.  It is hoped that the launch/opening will coincide with that of 
Hastings Pier. 
 
The Group asked several questions as follows: 

 
 Q  Will there be a daily cost/fee?  A  Yes, The Source Business Plan provide details.  

GC commented £6 per 2 hour session. 
 
 Q  Will training and equal opportunities be promoted?  A  Yes a smaller rink will be 

used as a training facility and The Source will work with schools, youth organisations 
and individuals (young women etc.) to enable equal opportunities. 

 
 Q  Explain the Media Suite?  A  Action set to music etc. 
 
 Q  Will the venue be open to sponsored events?  A  Yes part of The Source’ 

philosophy and they have already engaged Red Bull and part of the project for 
Hastings. 

 
 Q  Will BME communities be catered for?  A  We are sure The Source will embrace 

the outreach concept. 
 
 Q  Will the facility be open in winter?  A  Yes The Source hopes the winter period will 

bring their best custom. 
 
 Q  Has The Source leased the building ?  If so, will any income come back to the 

Foreshore Trust?  A  The Source has a 10 year lease at a commercial rate.  Income 
will be returned to the Foreshore Trust from the very start. 

 
 Q  Has anyone thought about buses, infrastructure and parking ?  A  The facility lies 

virtually in the town centre and therefore close to buses and the mainline station.  
Parents are likely to drop children off and collect them again.  Car parking is less of a 
problem in the winter months when this facility is expected to be at its busiest.   

 
 The Group agreed that this project will provide a major impact on the town and 

congratulated the officers concerned for the achievement. 
 

Recommended that the report to go forward to Charity Committee meeting 29th 
September 2014.  Action SH 

 
 
2.2 Seafront Strategy Refresh 

 
The existing seafront strategy, Leading From the Front, which covers both Hastings 
and Bexhill, was agreed in 2005.  Since that time there have been many 
developments affecting the seafront.  A refreshed strategy for Hastings is required to 
strengthen and incorporate further improvements.  A desktop review and strategic 
assessment was undertaken.  A rolling Action Plan based on the Strategy will be 
taken forward by HBC officers. 
 
The Strategy follows the basic principles of the 2005 document in four key themes – 
Organising for Success; Getting the Basics Right; Key Strategic Interventions; and 
Creating ‘zones of character’. 
 

Page 62



The Strategy will address infrastructure, accessibility, public realm, buildings and 
structures, sea defences and environmental sustainability.  The aim is to ensure a 
balance of activity and enable specific interventions.  There will be a discussion at the 
Pier Trust Hub, White Rock Baths on 27th September and a Focus Group will meet 
on 20th October.  It is intended to submit a report to Cabinet 1st December.  GC 
encouraged the Group to access the link on HBC website front page or write to 
Hastings Borough Council or to email any comments to 
seafrontstrategy@hastings.gov.uk.  The deadline is 31st October.  Action All 
 
The Group asked the following questions and made the following comments: 
 
Q  The link along the seafront was raised before but failed – what is this new one ? 
A  We will be pursuing an electric bus vehicle to either buy or rent.  It will be 
commercial i.e. charges will apply, and it is intended it will operate between the Old 
Town and West St. Leonards on the pavement. 
 
General Group Comments:  It is hoped HBC will look at Bottle Alley also as part of 
this Strategy together with the former Observer Building.  Also there is a niche market 
in Central St. Leonards, St. Leonards Gardens etc. – hope there are ideas for that 
area?  Regarding your zones for improvement please include Rock-a-Nore Road 
resurfacing.  Following the regeneration of the Pier and WRB – this will prove that 
Hastings is commercial and will attract visitors and operators to the area to further 
regenerate.  West Marina area is looking very sad and we would like to see 
development for the whole of the seafront. 
 
Q  Access to the sea – has any thought be given to that ?  To reinstate the landing 
stage on the Pier and at other places e.g. West Marina would require some effort.  In 
the past there were plans to install a ramp at the former Bathing Pool site, West 
Marina to access the sea but these were abandoned.  Persons prefer to go to Bexhill 
and the only launch points are at Eastbourne or Rye; this is a great loss for Hastings. 
A  HBC agrees with your comments and another issue is the A259 and we would like 
to reduce the separation from the road to the beach.  This latter point is being 
discussed with ESCC colleagues in the light of the Link Road progress.   
 
Q  Transportation is very poor right along the seafront and it’s impossible to get from 
one end of town to the other without changing buses – we must protect and support 
what we have. 
A  At a recent meeting with Stagecoach they seemed fully aware of the situation and 
have put on a couple extra services.  Stagecoach representative commented that a 
great deal depends on the Link Road.  The electric bus may also attract some 
European funding as it would be a sustainable form of transport. 
 
General Group Comments:  The Net shops have an architectural value and are now 
Grade II* listed buildings; the road is too poor, shingle has disappeared, and the 
whole area needs sorting. 
 
The Group thanked GC for his comprehensive presentation and supported the 
concept of the Seafront Strategy Refresh. 
 
Recommended that the report to go forward to Charity Committee meeting 29th 
September 2014.  Action SH 

 
2.3 Former LadiesToilets, Under Promenade, Verulam Place 
 VG presented the report from Peter Grace, Head of Finance, HBC.  The report sets 

out plans to grant a lease for the former ladies toilets to the Hastings Pier Trust.  A 

Page 63



lease of the gentlemen’s’ toilets was granted in the past.  The toilets will be used for 
maintenance, storage and there will be some staff facilities also.  This will provide 
some much needed activity around these toilets and access to and from the car park 
too which will bring these spaces back into use.  Noted that toilet facilities will be 
available on the Pier and there will be extra temporary toilets provided for key events.  
Noted also that The Source BMX Facility will also have toilet facilities available. 

 
 The Group supported the grant of a lease of the former ladies toilets to the Hastings 

Pier Trust. 
 

Recommended that the report to go forward to Charity Committee meeting 29th 
September 2014.  Action VG/Peter Grace 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 64


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 June 2014
	5 Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme
	Appendix A - Foreshore Trust Small Grants Programme 2014-15 (Round 4)

	6 Foreshore Trust - Financial Report
	Appendix 1 - Foreshore Trust Financial Report
	Appendix 1A - Foreshore Trust Financial Report
	Appendix 2 - Foreshore Trust Financial Report

	7 Annual Report and Final Accounts 2013/14
	Appendix 1 - Report and Accounts

	8 Former Ladies Toilets under Promenade at Verulam Place
	Appendix 1 - Former Ladies Toilets under Promenade at Verulam Place

	9 Minutes of the meeting of Coastal Users Group held on 9 September 2014

